
Walker Schooler District Managers 
614 N. Tejon St., Colorado Springs, CO 80903     (719) 447-1777      www.wsdistricts.co        

 

BRADLEY HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1, 2 and 3 
Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, April 12, 2022 at 9:00 AM 
119 N. Wahsatch Ave. 

Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903 
and 

Via tele/videoconference 
https://meet.goto.com/547622885  
United States: +1 (646) 749-3122 

 Access Code: 547-622-885 
 

Board of Director Title Term 
Randle W Case II 
Bryan T Long 
Ray O’Sullivan 
Robert Case 
VACANT 

President 
Vice-President 
Treasurer/ Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 
Assistant Secretary 

May 2023 
May 2023 
May 2025 
May 2025 
May 2023 

 
AGENDA 

1. Call to order 

2. Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/ Disclosure Matters 

3. Approval of Agenda  

4. Board Vacancy  

5. Approval of March 8, 2022, Meeting Minutes (see attached) 

6. District Manager Report 

7. President of the Board Report 

8. Development Status Review 
a. Engineering Update 

• Schedule 
b. Plan Updates 

• Roadway/ Utility/ Storm Water 
c. Redemption Hill Church  
d. Challenger Homes  
e. Bradley Ridge 
f. Widefield School Update  

9. Financial Matters 
a. Discuss Developer Advance Agreements / Reimbursements 

• Operation and Administrative Advance and Reimbursement Agreement with 
developers including Challenger and ROI 

• Developer Infrastructure Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreement with Challenger 
and ROI 

• Discuss responsibility for demolition of the 12” water line through the property 
b. Approve Unaudited Financial Reports for March 31, 2022 (see attached) 
c. Payables for April 12, 2022 (see attached) 
d. Discuss drainage, platting and building permit fees collection by the District 

https://meet.goto.com/547622885
tel:+16467493122,,547622885


Walker Schooler District Managers 
614 N. Tejon St., Colorado Springs, CO 80903     (719) 447-1777      www.wsdistricts.co        

 

e. Approval/Ratify/Pre-approval contracts 
• Matrix design of Phase 2 Design contract  
• Drainage design-  CLOMR/LOMR and other channel revisions  
• Review bids for Phase 1 and 2 RFP and award 

10. Discuss City/District IGA Regarding Project Fund Surety In Lieu of LOC 

11. Other Business  
a. Next Regular Meeting scheduled: May 10, 2022, at 9:00 a.m. 

12. Adjourn 
 
 

 
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETINGS 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN That the Board of Directors of BRADLEY HEIGHTS 

METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1, 2 and 3, County of El Paso, State of Colorado, will hold a regular 
meetings at 9:00 AM on Tuesday, the 12th day of April at 119 North Wahsatch Ave., Colorado Springs, CO 80903, 
and via tele/videoconferencing at the following: https://meet.goto.com/547622885 United States: Access 
Code: 547-622-885 for the purpose of conducting such business as may come before the Board including the 
business on the attached agenda.  The meeting is open to the public. 
 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
BRADLEY HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1, 2 AND 3 

 

https://meet.goto.com/547622885


 
 



Walker Schooler District Managers 
614 N. Tejon St., Colorado Springs, CO 80903     (719) 447-1777      www.wsdistricts.co        

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING  
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  

BRADLEY HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1, 2, AND 3 
HELD MARCH 8, 2022 

AT 9:00 AM 
 
Pursuant to posted notice, the special meetings of the Board of Directors of the Bradley Heights Metropolitan 
District Nos. 1, 2 and 3 were held on Tuesday, March 8, 2022, at 9:00 a.m., at 119 N. Wahsatch Avenue, Colorado 
Springs, CO, and at the tele/videoconference platform of GoToMeeting link: https://meet.goto.com/547622885.  
 
Attendance 
In attendance were Directors: 
Randle Case II, President 
Bryan Long, Vice President 
Robert Case, Assistant Secretary (by phone) 
Ray O’Sullivan, Assistant Secretary 
 
Also in attendance were: 
K. Sean Allen, Esq., White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron (by phone) 
Kevin Walker, WSDM 
Rebecca Hardekopf, WSDM 
Eric Smith, Matrix Design Group, District Engineer (by phone) 
Chris Grundy, Project Manager (by phone) 
David Neville, Kiemele Family Partnerships (by phone) 
Jeff Odor, Matrix Design Group (by phone) 
Nate Mast, Redemption Hill Church (by phone) 
Tony Gordon, Redemption Hill Church (by phone) 

 
 

Combined Meeting: The Board of Directors of the Districts have determined to hold a joint meeting of the 
Districts and to prepare joint minutes of actions taken by the Districts in such meetings. Unless otherwise noted 
herein, all official action reflected in these minutes shall be deemed to be the action of all Districts. Where 
necessary, action taken by an individual District will be so reflected in these minutes. 
 
1. Call to order: The meeting was called to order by President Case II at 9:05 a.m. 

2. Declaration of Quorum/Director Qualifications/ Disclosure Matters: President Randle Case II indicated 
 that a quorum of the Boards was present and stated that each Director has been qualified as an eligible 
 elector  of the Districts pursuant to Colorado law. The Directors confirmed their qualification. Mr. Allen 
 advised the Boards that, pursuant to Colorado law, certain disclosures might be required prior to taking 
 official action at the meeting. Mr. Walker reported that disclosures for those directors with potential or 
 existing conflicts of interest were filed with the Secretary of State’s Office and the Boards at least 72 
 hours prior to the meeting, in accordance with Colorado law, and those disclosures were acknowledged 
 by the Board. Mr. Allen inquired into whether members of the Boards had any additional disclosures of 
 potential or existing conflicts of interest with regard to any matters scheduled for discussion at the 
 meeting. No additional disclosures were noted. The Boards determined that the participation of the 
 members present was necessary to obtain a quorum or to otherwise enable the Boards to act. 

3. Approval of Agenda: Ms. Hardekopf requested the Board add Review and Approval of the Audit 
Exemption for Bradley Heights MD No. 1 under Financial Matters. Director Long moved to approve the 
Agenda as amended; seconded by Director Robert Case. Motion passed unanimously. 

https://meet.goto.com/547622885


Walker Schooler District Managers 
614 N. Tejon St., Colorado Springs, CO 80903     (719) 447-1777      www.wsdistricts.co        

 

4. Board Vacancy and Appointment of Treasurer/ Secretary Position: Mr. Walker explained Mr. Jim Byers 
expressed an interest in being appointed to the Boards. It was noted that Mr. Byers may become an 
eligible elector of the Districts after a Notice of Vacancy is published.  Appointment is anticipated to 
occur at the May 10th Board meeting following the Election. Director Long moved to designate Director 
O’Sullivan as Secretary/Treasurer; seconded by Director Robert Case. Motion passed unanimously. 
Director Long moved to approve the change of signature cards for Eastern Colorado Bank; seconded by 
Director Robert Case. Motion passed unanimously.  
 

5. Approval of December 14, 2021 Meeting Minutes, January 11, 2022 Meeting Minutes, and February 15, 
2022 Meeting Minutes: After review, Director Robert Case moved to approve the December 14, 2021 
Meeting Minutes, January 11, 2022 Meeting Minutes, and February 15, 2022 Meeting Minutes as 
presented; seconded by Director O’Sullivan. Motion passed unanimously.  

6. District Manager Report: Mr. Walker reported he has been preparing for the upcoming Audit as well as 
participating in the construction meetings and reviewing documents with the construction manager. Mr. 
Walker has been reviewing District finances and noted the operating account is out of money and the 
Districts are in need of advances to be able to pay for operation and administrative services. He 
suggested splitting advances/costs between the two developers and the primary property owner to allow 
the Districts the ability to pay for these services in 2022 and pay off past due amounts from the  shortfall 
in 2021.  

7. President of the Board Report: President Randle Case II noted that updates and discussion will be had 
later in the Agenda. 

8. Development Status Review 
a. Engineering Update 

• Schedule: Mr. Grundy discussed the updated schedule and noted the second submittal of 
the master drainage and development plan will go to the City on March 25th. The final 
submittal of the stormwater plans will be in a week, and phase 1 utility drawings have 
been submitted. Mr. Grundy discussed the phase 2 design schedule and noted it is on 
target.  

• Stockpile location, agreements, timing:  Mr. Grundy informed the Board that the 
Contractor RFP has been advertised and the closing date for submissions of proposals is 
March 28th. The estimated starting dates for phase 1 construction is early May running 
through late November, and phase 2 starting late May running through with a break in the 
winter to July 2023. Mr. Grundy discussed the stockpile and noted there are two options 
of either dumping the excess in a stockpile, and the other is to compact the excess in a 
specified location.  

b. Plan Updates 
• Roadway, Utility, Stormwater: Mr. Odor discussed that Challenger expressed concern 

with the construction schedule and that material ordering is not going to provide them the 
access they are looking for by their October 1st deadline of delivering lots. A solution that 
was discussed with Challenger is to provide them with the plans so they can order the 
materials and potentially complete the construction of utilities if needed and be 
reimbursed by the District. If the District’s contractor is able to meet Challenger’s 
deadline, then the District would purchase the materials back from Challenger. The Board 
discussed the 24” line and the need to move things forward in a timely manner.  

c. Redemption Hill Church: Mr. Gordon reported they have submitted drawings to RBD and are 
receiving comments back. The permits should be ready in the next three weeks with the 
exception of the DP. They will be bringing dirt in for the grading but could use the excess if it is 
suitable quality.  



Walker Schooler District Managers 
614 N. Tejon St., Colorado Springs, CO 80903     (719) 447-1777      www.wsdistricts.co        

 

d. Challenger Homes: Mr. Walker reported that Challenger is proceeding according to their 
October 1st deadline.  

e. Bradley Ridge: Director O’Sullivan reported there was a change in lot sizes to 45’ x 90’ from 35’ 
x 90’. They will submit for permits in 2 weeks. He noted they will be reshuffling the parks and 
school site which could create an area for excess dirt.  

f. Widefield School Update: President Randle Case II reported they met with Widefield School 
representatives and discussed options for school sites sizes and parking issues.  
 

9. Financial Matters 
a. Approval of the Audit Exemption for Bradley Heights MD No. 1: Ms. Hardekopf explained that 

District No. 1 is eligible for a short-form Audit exemption. Director O’Sullivan moved to 
approve the Audit Exemption for Bradley Heights MD No. 1; seconded by Director Long. 
Motion passed unanimously.  

b. Discuss Developer Advance Agreements / Reimbursements: Mr. Walker and Mr. Allen will be 
working on Developer Advance Agreements and Reimbursement structure for Board review at 
the next meeting.  

c. Approve Unaudited Financial Reports for February 28, 2022: Director O’Sullivan moved to 
accept the Unaudited Financial Reports for February 28, 2022 as presented; seconded by 
Director Robert Case. Motion passed unanimously.  

d. Payables for March 8, 2022: Mr. Walker presented the Payables and noted the payment for 
insurance and the bond acquisition. After review, Director O’Sullivan moved to approve the 
Payables including the bond draw; seconded by Director Long. Motion passed unanimously.   

e. Ratify/Pre-approval Contracts, if any: There was no discussion.  

10. Other Business 
a. Ratify approval of ICC Membership: Director O’Sullivan moved to ratify the approval of the 

ICC Membership; seconded by Director Robert Case. Mr. Walker noted that ICC has pushed 
back on the membership qualifications, so Mr. Walker is working on that. Motion passed 
unanimously.  

b. Next Regular Meeting scheduled: April 12, 2022, at 9:00 AM. 
 

11. Adjourn: The Board adjourned the meeting at 10:19 AM. 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
________________________________ 
By: Kevin Walker for the Recording Secretary 

 



 
 



Mar 31, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
ECB - Checking 6,431.64

Total Checking/Savings 6,431.64

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 108,500.00

Total Accounts Receivable 108,500.00

Other Current Assets
Due From District 3 910.00
Due From District 2 1,200.00

Total Other Current Assets 2,110.00

Total Current Assets 117,041.64

TOTAL ASSETS 117,041.64

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 25,065.81

Total Accounts Payable 25,065.81

Total Current Liabilities 25,065.81

Long Term Liabilities
Developer Advance - Randle Case 41,000.00
Marksheffel-Woodmen Investments 75,850.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 116,850.00

Total Liabilities 141,915.81

Equity
Retained Earnings -118,544.63
Net Income 93,670.46

Total Equity -24,874.17

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 117,041.64

2:43 PM Bradley Heights Metropolitan District No. 1
04/05/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2022

Page 1



 2:41 PM
 04/05/22
 Accrual Basis

 Bradley Heights Metropolitan District No. 1

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 January through March 2022

TOTAL

Mar 22 Jan - Mar 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Developer Advance 108,500.00 108,500.00 70,000.00 38,500.00 155.0%

Transfer From District 2-O&M 0.00 0.00 209.10 -209.10 0.0%

Transfer From District 3-O&M 0.00 0.00 319.03 -319.03 0.0%

Total Income 108,500.00 108,500.00 70,528.13 37,971.87 153.84%

Expense

Audit 0.00 0.00 8,500.00 -8,500.00 0.0%

Bank Service Charge 0.00 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.0%

Contingency 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

Copies & Postage 99.05 101.80 1,000.00 -898.20 10.18%

District Management 3,000.00 9,000.00 36,000.00 -27,000.00 25.0%

Dues & Subscriptions (SDA) - D1 0.00 1,237.50 500.00 737.50 247.5%

Dues & Subsriptions (SDA) - D2 0.00 225.71 500.00 -274.29 45.14%

Dues & Subscriptions (SDA) - D3 0.00 225.01 500.00 -274.99 45.0%

Elections 141.96 1,282.27

Insurance - D1 0.00 0.00 1,600.00 -1,600.00 0.0%

Insurance - D2 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

Insurance - D3 0.00 0.00 1,600.00 -1,600.00 0.0%

Legal 2,152.50 2,757.25 10,000.00 -7,242.75 27.57%

Total Expense 5,393.51 14,829.54 68,300.00 -53,470.46 21.71%

Net Income 103,106.49 93,670.46 2,228.13 91,442.33 4,203.99%

 Page 1 of 1



Income and Expense by Month
January through March 2022

Income
Expense

0

20

40

60

80

100

120
$ in 1,000's

Jan22 Feb22 Mar22

Income Summary
January through March 2022

By Account

100.00%Developer Advance
$108,500.00Total



Income and Expense by Month
January through March 2022

Income
Expense

0

20

40

60

80

100

120
$ in 1,000's

Jan22 Feb22 Mar22

Expense Summary
January through March 2022

By Account

60.69%District Management
18.59Legal

8.65Elections
8.34Dues & Subscriptions (SDA) - D1
1.52Dues & Subsriptions (SDA) - D2
1.52Dues & Subscriptions (SDA) - D3
0.69Copies & Postage

$14,829.54Total



Mar 31, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
ECB Checking 412.52
UMB - Project Fund 156470.2 33,670,661.07

Total Checking/Savings 33,671,073.59

Other Current Assets
Property Tax Receivable 478.60

Total Other Current Assets 478.60

Total Current Assets 33,671,552.19

TOTAL ASSETS 33,671,552.19

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

Due to District 1 1,200.00
Deferred Poperty Tax Revenue 478.60

Total Other Current Liabilities 1,678.60

Total Current Liabilities 1,678.60

Long Term Liabilities
Series 2021A Bonds 35,000,000.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 35,000,000.00

Total Liabilities 35,001,678.60

Equity
Retained Earnings -1,187,928.41
Net Income -142,198.00

Total Equity -1,330,126.41

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 33,671,552.19

9:19 AM Bradley Heights Metropolitan District No. 2
04/06/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2022

Page 1



 9:15 AM
 04/06/22
 Accrual Basis

 Bradley Heights Metropolitan District No. 2

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 January through March 2022

TOTAL

Mar 22 Jan - Mar 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

CY Property Tax - O&M 78.55 78.55 198.20 -119.65 39.63%

Specific Ownership Tax - O&M 1.55 3.16 13.87 -10.71 22.78%

CY Property Tax - Debt 235.65 235.65 594.60 -358.95 39.63%

Specifice Ownership Tax - Debt 4.66 9.49 41.62 -32.13 22.8%

Total Income 320.41 326.85 848.29 -521.44 38.53%

Expense

Capital Outlay

Engineering/Planning 94,059.52 130,059.52

Project Management 15,990.00 23,985.00

Total Capital Outlay 110,049.52 154,044.52

Treasurer Collection Fee - O&M 1.18 1.18 2.97 -1.79 39.73%

Treasurer Collection Fee - Debt 3.53 3.53 8.92 -5.39 39.57%

Total Expense 110,054.23 154,049.23 11.89 154,037.34 1,295,620.1%

Net Ordinary Income -109,733.82 -153,722.38 836.40 -154,558.78 -18,379.05%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Interest Income - Debt 6,932.19 11,524.38

Total Other Income 6,932.19 11,524.38

Other Expense

Other Expense

Transfer to Dist 1 - Gen Fund 0.00 0.00 209.10 -209.10 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 209.10 -209.10 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 209.10 -209.10 0.0%

Net Other Income 6,932.19 11,524.38 -209.10 11,733.48 -5,511.42%

Net Income -102,801.63 -142,198.00 627.30 -142,825.30 -22,668.26%

 Page 1 of 1



Income and Expense by Month
January through March 2022

Income
Expense

0

20

40

60

80

100

120
$ in 1,000's

Jan22 Feb22 Mar22

Income Summary
January through March 2022

By Account

97.24%Interest Income - Debt
1.99CY Property Tax - Debt
0.66CY Property Tax - O&M
0.08Specifice Ownership Tax - Debt
0.03Specific Ownership Tax - O&M

$11,851.23Total



Income and Expense by Month
January through March 2022

Income
Expense

0

20

40

60

80

100

120
$ in 1,000's

Jan22 Feb22 Mar22

Expense Summary
January through March 2022

By Account

100.00%Capital Outlay
0.01Treasurer Collection Fee - Debt
0.01Treasurer Collection Fee - O&M

$154,049.23Total



Mar 31, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
ECB Checking 222.55

Total Checking/Savings 222.55

Other Current Assets
Property Tax Receivable 155.00

Total Other Current Assets 155.00

Total Current Assets 377.55

TOTAL ASSETS 377.55

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

Due To District 1 910.00
Deferred Poperty Tax Revenue 155.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 1,065.00

Total Current Liabilities 1,065.00

Total Liabilities 1,065.00

Equity
Retained Earnings -837.47
Net Income 150.02

Total Equity -687.45

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 377.55

11:22 AM Bradley Heights Metropolitan District No. 3
04/05/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2022

Page 1



 11:19 AM
 04/05/22
 Accrual Basis

 Bradley Heights Metropolitan District No. 3

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 January through March 2022

TOTAL

Mar 22 Jan - Mar 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

CY Property Tax - O&M 36.85 36.85 75.60 -38.75 48.74%

Specific Ownership Tax - O&M 0.59 1.21 5.29 -4.08 22.87%

CY Property Tax - Debt 110.55 110.55 226.80 -116.25 48.74%

Specifice Ownership Tax - Debt 1.78 3.62 15.88 -12.26 22.8%

Total Income 149.77 152.23 323.57 -171.34 47.05%

Expense

Treasurer Collection Fee - O&M 0.55 0.55 1.13 -0.58 48.67%

Treasurer Collection Fee - Debt 1.66 1.66 3.40 -1.74 48.82%

Total Expense 2.21 2.21 4.53 -2.32 48.79%

Net Ordinary Income 147.56 150.02 319.04 -169.02 47.02%

Other Income/Expense

Other Expense

Other Expense

Transfer to Dist 1 - Gen Fund 0.00 0.00 319.04 -319.04 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 319.04 -319.04 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 0.00 319.04 -319.04 0.0%

Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 -319.04 319.04 0.0%

Net Income 147.56 150.02 0.00 150.02 100.0%

 Page 1 of 1



Income and Expense by Month
January through March 2022

Income
Expense

0

50

100

150
$ in 1's

Jan22 Feb22 Mar22

Income Summary
January through March 2022

By Account

72.62%CY Property Tax - Debt
24.21CY Property Tax - O&M

2.38Specifice Ownership Tax - Debt
0.79Specific Ownership Tax - O&M

$152.23Total



Income and Expense by Month
January through March 2022

Income
Expense

0

50

100

150
$ in 1's

Jan22 Feb22 Mar22

Expense Summary
January through March 2022

By Account

75.11%Treasurer Collection Fee - Debt
24.89Treasurer Collection Fee - O&M
$2.21Total



 
 



Company Invoice Date Amount
Walker Schooler District Managers 7029 3/31/2022 3,099.05$         

White Bear Anekele 20613 2/28/2022 1,745.06$         

White Bear Anekele 21123 3/31/2022 2,294.46$         

TOTAL 4,844.11$         

$4,844.11

Bradley Heights Metropolitan District

Bradley Heights Metropolitan District
 PAYMENT REQUEST

4/5/2022

GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT

Comments



Company Invoice Date Amount
Grundy Construction Management & Consulting BHM-005 3/31/2022 7,995.00$         
Matrix Design Group 35119 11/10/2021 21,930.15$       
Matrix Design Group 36066 4/4/2022 235.00$            
Matrix Design Group 36067 4/4/2022 111,442.50$     

TOTAL 141,602.65$     

Bradley Heights Metropolitan District

Bradley Heights Metropolitan District
 PAYMENT REQUEST

4/12/2022

BOND FUND ACCOUNT

Comments



 
 



 

Matrix Design Group, Inc. 
2435 Research Parkway, Suite 300 

Colorado Springs, CO 80920 
O  719.575.0100 
F  719.575.0208 

matrixdesigngroup.com 
 

 

Anniston, AL  |  Atlanta, GA  |  Colorado Springs, CO  |  Denver, CO  |  Niceville, FL  |  Parsons, KS  |  Phoenix, AZ 
Sacramento, CA  |  Tamuning, GUAM  |  Texarkana, TX  |  Washington, DC 

 
 

Contract Change Order #001: Contract Adjustment and Additional Services 
 
Client Name: 
 

Address: 
 

Bradley Heights Metropolitan District 
ATTN:  Randy Case, President  
 

119 N. Wahsatch Avenue 
Colorado Springs, CO 80903 
 
Project Name:  Bradley Heights imp AND Phase 1 
Engineering/Construction Drawings 
 

Project No:  21.1213.004 Project Location:  Colorado Springs, Colorado 
  
Scope of Services:  Matrix will complete the work as outlined in the attached scope of work provided 
below.   
 
Item 1:  DBPS and MDDP amendments, Phase 1 FDR (Modification to existing Task 2: Master 
Development Drainage Plan Amendment & Final Drainage Report) 

 
Drainage Basin Planning Study Amendment (DBPS) 
• Review and analyze the current DBPS flows 
• Develop HEC-HMS hydrology model to evaluate basin flows 
• Establish updated basin (design) flows for the channel design using current City design criteria 

(fully developed future conditions) and current zoning. 
• Evaluate drainage impacts of the existing Colorado Centre detention pond for downstream 

channel improvements. 
 

Master Development Drainage Report Amendment & Drainage Basin Planning Study Amendment  
• Update MDDP to reflect DBPS design flow revisions 
• Update MDDP to reflect final channel improvement design 
• Update DBPS to reflect estimated channel improvement costs 
 
Phase 1 Final Drainage Report (FDR) 
The original contract included the FDR as a combined document with the MDDP amendment. In the 
interest in timing, and since the original MDDP amendment was being delayed with the channel 
improvements, it was agreed that the Phase 1 FDR should be completed independently. The Phase 1 
FDR and Phase 1 storm plans are interrelated as the storm plans are dependent on the FDR 
approval. A delay on the FDR, if continued as a combined document, would have resulted in a delay 
of the Phase 1 storm plan approval potentially affecting the schedule of Challenger Homes 
development.  The additional fee covers the cost to prepare two separate documents, which 
includes separate reviews.  

 
  



 
 
 
 

 

Page 2 

Item 2: Channel Design & permitting revisions (Modification to existing Task 4: Marksheffel Tributary 
– Permitting, Engineering & Construction Documents) 
 

Channel Design Alternatives 
• Complete a preliminary hydraulic analysis for design alternatives (based on DBPS revised flows 

included in Item 1 above) 
• Provide 2 channel design alternative (in addition to the alternative included with the MDDP). 

Alternatives will incorporate factors to include, but not limited to, earthwork quantities, channel 
slope, design flows for drop structures, height of drop structures, and number of drop 
structures. 

• Provide a cost opinion and comparison between the provided design alternatives.  
• Provide recommendation to select design alternative based on this evaluation 

 
Extended Channel Design 
• Per discussion and coordination with the City, the City is requiring the channel improvements to: 

o Extend the channel improvement design approximately 750 LF upstream to the south 
side of Bradley Road 

o Extend the channel improvement design approximately 425 LF downstream from the 
existing detention pond to the existing box culvert crossing under Marksheffel Rd. 
Improvements to sizing or capacity or the box culvert are not anticipated and are 
excluded from this task.  

 
Floodplain Mapping 
• Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) 

o Coordination with PPRBD Floodplain Administrator and the Colorado Water 
Conservation Board 

o Floodplain delineation based on selected channel design (alignment and cross section) 
o Processing the design through FEMA to obtain approved CLOMR document 

 
• Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) 

o Develop as-constructed documents based on survey data. 
o Develop as-constructed floodplain delineation documents required by FEMA 
o Coordination and processing of LOMR through the jurisdictional regulatory agencies.  

 
• Specific exclusions related to the CLOMR and LOMR: 

o Construction administration during the construction of the channel improvements 
o As-constructed surveying of the channel improvements 
o Permitting, review, and other outside agency fees 

 
Coordinate System coordination & translation  

• The coordinate system being used by the developers and the district is different than that 
used by FEMA. As a CLOMR & LOMR is required, coordinate system translation is required 
for these processes. This task covers the efforts related to the coordinate translation as 
necessary. 

 
 
  



 
 
 
 

 

Page 3 

Item 3: Masterplan and planning documents (Modification to existing Task 1: Utility Infrastructure 
Master Plan) 
 

Updates to Utility Masterplan and Phasing plans 
Includes additional fees associated with ongoing updates to utility master plans to include ongoing 
revisions related to the developer coordination. This includes the phasing plans related to grading, 
roadways, and utilities. 
 
Updates to Planning Documents 
Includes additional fees associated with ongoing updates to planning documents (zoning and/or 
ownership) to maintain accuracy as developments progress and ownership changes. This includes 
revisions related to the ongoing discussions with Widefield School district regarding the potential 
school and park locations.  
 
Development of exhibits related to Colorado Springs Utilities Individual Plan  
Includes additional fees associated with the development of exhibits related to the Individual Plan 
agreement with CSU. The Individual plan outlines the required steps, anticipated timing, responsible 
parties related to the transition between disconnecting from CCMD water service and connecting to 
the proposed service from the CSU 24” waterline.  

 
Item 4: Drainage Basin Fees Credits & Drainage Board Application 
 

Drainage Basin Fee credits 
If an application for drainage basin fee credits is submitted to the Drainage Board, Matrix will 
provide support for the application as necessary. 
 
Drainage Board Application 
At the District discretion, Matrix will work with the district to prepare an application to the Drainage 
Board for fee credits and/or reimbursed construction costs based on realized post construction 
costs.  

 
CH ANGE O RDER  LINE ITEM S:  CO  #001 

# Description Type Amount 
1 DBPS and M DDP amendments, Phase 1 FDR Lump Sum $ 26,000.00 
2 Channel Design &  permitting revisions Lump Sum $ 97,500.00 
3 M asterplan and planning documents Lump Sum $ 9,500.00 
4 Drainage Basin Fees Credits &  Drainage 

Board Application 
Time & M aterials  

 
The original (Contract Sum) $477,500 L.S.  
Net change by previously authorized Change O rders $0 L.S.  
The contract sum prior to this Change O rder was $477,500 L.S.  
The contract sum will be increased by this Change O rder by $133,000 L.S.  
The New contract sum including this Change O rder will be $610,500 L.S.  

 
Total contracted fees do not include time and materials tasks.  The costs associated with T& M  work 
is in addition to the lump sum fees. 
  



 
 
 
 

 

Page 4 

The following additional attachments are made a part of this Agreement:   
O riginal Contract signed September 14, 2021 (by reference), 2022 M atrix Standard H ourly Rates & 
General Conditions. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Matrix Design Group, Inc. and Client have made and executed this Agreement. 
 
MATRIX DESIGN GROUP, INC. BRADLEY HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
  
 
 
 

 

By:  Eric Smith, PE By: _______________________________ 
Its:  Vice-President Its: _______________________________ 
Date:  April 7, 2022 Date: _____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 











 

Matrix Design Group, Inc. 
2435 Research Parkway, Suite 300 

Colorado Springs, CO 80920 
O  719.575.0100 
F  719.575.0208 

matrixdesigngroup.com 
 

 

Anniston, AL  |  Atlanta, GA  |  Colorado Springs, CO  |  Denver, CO  |  Niceville, FL  |  Parsons, KS  |  Phoenix, AZ 
Sacramento, CA  |  Tamuning, GUAM  |  Texarkana, TX  |  Washington, DC 

 
 

STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
Client Name: 
 

Address: 
 

Bradley Heights Metropolitan District 
ATTN:  Randy Case, President  
 

119 N. Wahsatch Avenue 
Colorado Springs, CO 80903 
 
Project Name:  Bradley Heights Phase 2 
Engineering/Construction Drawings 
 

Project No:  TBD Project Location:  Colorado Springs, Colorado 
  
Matrix Design Group, Inc. (MATRIX) and client hereby enter into this Agreement for Professional 
Services, pursuant to which, MATRIX will perform services for the compensation set forth below. 
 
Scope of Services:  Matrix will complete the work as outlined in the attached scope of work dated 
March 31,2022  
 
Compensation:  Matrix will complete Scope Items 1-3 for a lump sum cost of $380,500.00 per the 
attached proposal.  Project Meetings and Coordination will be billed on a Time and Materials basis at 
Standard Hourly Rates.  Expenses will be billed, as accrued, at cost plus 10%. 
 
Upon approval from Client, any work that is identified to be outside of the scope of work will be 
completed on a time and materials basis at Matrix standard hourly rates or will be negotiated through a 
change order to this agreement. 
 
The following additional attachments are made a part of this Agreement:  Scope of Work dated April 5, 
2022, Professional Fee Schedule, General Conditions and 2022 Matrix Hourly Rate Schedule 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Matrix Design Group, Inc. and Client have made and executed this Agreement. 
 
MATRIX DESIGN GROUP, INC. BRADLEY HEIGHTS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
  
 
 
 

 

By:  Eric Smith, PE By: _______________________________ 
Its:  Vice-President Its: _______________________________ 
Date:  April 7, 2022 Date: _____________________________ 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 

Page 2 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Phase 2 Engineering/Construction Drawings 
Bradley Heights Metropolitan District 

April 5, 2022 
 

 
Matrix will provide Phase 2 engineering/construction documents for the Bradley Heights development 
as outlined below. 
 
Task 1:  Phase 2 Engineering/Construction Documents – Roadways & Utilities 
Phase 2 engineering/construction documents will be completed for the following roadways as described 
below: 
 

Marksheffel Road Improvements – Approx. 2,000 LF along the eastern frontage of Bradley Heights 
• Grading and Erosion Control 
• Curb and gutter along west side of Marksheffel Road, if required 
• SB deceleration right turn lane at Bradley Ridge 
• NB deceleration left turn lane and median improvements at Bradley Ridge 
• Northbound widening, if required 
• Box Culvert headwall extension structural design (Marksheffel box culvert, west site) 
• Traffic signal at Bradley Ridge 
• Stormwater conveyance along Marksheffel Road 
• Detention and water quality treatment facilities for roadway improvements 
• Signing and striping 
• Utility coordination – relocation and design by others 

o Electric 
o Gas 
o Telecommunications 

 
Bradley Ridge Road Improvements – Approx. 4,400 LF between Marksheffel Rd and the west Bradley 
Heights development property line 

• Grading and Erosion Control 
• Design of a 3-lane collector roadway with bike lanes.  Curb and gutter and sidewalk 
• 12” water main 
• Sanitary sewer, as necessary 
• Storm sewer, as necessary 
• Signing and striping 

  



 
 
 
 

 

Page 3 

Bradley Landing Road Improvements – Approx. 2,700 LF between Phase 1 (Legacy Hill Rd) and 
Bradley Ridge Road 

• Grading and Erosion Control 
• Design of a 3-lane collector roadway with bike lanes.  Curb and gutter and sidewalk  
• 12” water main 
• Sanitary sewer, as necessary 
• Storm sewer, as necessary 
• Signing and striping 

 
Bliss Road Improvements – Approx. 1,350 LF Phase 1 and Bradley Landing Road  

• Grading and Erosion Control 
• Design of a 3-lane collector roadway with bike lanes.  Curb and gutter and sidewalk  
• 8” water main 
• Sanitary sewer, as necessary 
• Storm sewer, as necessary 
• Signing and striping 

 
Legacy Hill Drive Improvements – Approx. 1,100 LF between Bradley Landing Rd. and the west 
Bradley Heights development property line 

• Grading and Erosion Control 
• Design of a 3-lane collector roadway with bike lanes.  Curb and gutter and sidewalk 
• 8” water main, as necessary 
• Sanitary sewer, as necessary 
• Storm sewer, as necessary 
• Signing and striping 

 
Bridgegate Place Improvements – Approx. 1,900 LF between Bradley Ridge Rd. and the south Bradley 
Heights development property line 

• Grading and Erosion Control 
• Design of a 3-lane collector roadway with bike lanes.  Curb and gutter and sidewalk 
• 8” water main, as necessary 
• Sanitary sewer, as necessary 
• Storm sewer, as necessary 
• Signing and striping 

 
  



 
 
 
 

 

Page 4 

Drainage and Stormwater facilities 
• Design of full spectrum detention facility (Pond 1), near the east side of the existing 

electrical substation, south of Legacy Hill Drive and west of Bradley Landing.  The pond will 
be designed  as a full spectrum detention facility per the City of Colorado Springs criterial for 
developed stormwater flows from the contributing drainage area.  Matrix will coordinate 
assumed developed condition with the adjacent property owners. 

• Design of an interim detention and/or water quality facility located in the SW portion of the 
site (south of Bradley Ridge Rd). This facility (Pond 2) is intended to be replaced with a 
permanent full spectrum detention pond completed by the developer at such time that 
development within the contributing area requires the permanent facility.  Location of 
interim facility to be coordinated with the developer.  

• Design of two (2) interim water quality facilites located in the east portion of the site 
(between Bradley Landing Rd. or Bliss Rd. and the drainage channel). These facilities (Ponds 
5 & 7) are intended to be replaced with a permanent water quality ponds completed by the 
developer(s) at such time that development within the contributing area requires the 
permanent facility. Location of interim facility to be coordinated with the developer(s). 

• Development of drainage easements related to drainage, detention and water quality 
facilities.  

 
Utility Extensions outside of roadway corridors  

• Design of sanitary sewer extension (approx. 850 lf) along the north end of the commercial 
parcel adjacent to the south side of Bradley Road 

• Design of 8” water extension (approx. 850 lf) along the north end of the commercial parcel 
adjacent to the south of Bradley Road 

 
The construction plans will be broken out into several sets as required by the City of Colorado Springs 
and Colorado Springs Utilities.  These sets include: 
 

• Grading and erosion control plans 
o Standard title sheet, general notes and details following City standards. 
o Initial, interim, and final erosion control plans 
o City Stormwater Management Plan (CSWMP) 

• Roadway Plan Set 
o Standard title sheet, general notes and details following City standards 
o Horizontal control plans to include horizontal detailing and control points of 

improvements  
o Existing conditions and demolition plan, as required 
o Roadway improvements plans 
o Centerline Plan and profile and intersection plans to include profile grade, curb 

return and intersection detailing, spot grading, and ADA access, where applicable 
o Signage and striping plans 
o Traffic signal plans 

• Storm Sewer Plan Set – Within roadway cross section 
o Standard title sheet, general notes and details following City standards 
o Storm sewer plan and profile 
o Storm sewer hydraulic Pipe Design Report 

  



 
 
 
 

 

Page 5 

• Water plan and profile plan sets – Within roadway cross section 
o Standard title sheet, general notes and details following Colorado Springs Utilities 

standards 
o Water main plan and profile 

• Sanitary sewer plan set – Within roadway cross section 
o Standard title sheet, general notes and details following Colorado Springs Utilities 

standards 
o Sanitary main plan and profile 

• Pond Plans 
o Standard title sheet, general notes and details following City standards 
o Pond plan view sheet 
o Forebay, trickle channel, and outlet structure designs 
o Pond specific cross sections and details 

 
All plans will be prepared in accordance with City of Colorado Springs or Colorado Springs Utilities 
standards, as applicable.  Matrix will coordinate plan approvals through the City and CSU. 
 
Task 2:  Final Drainage Report - Phase 2 Infrastructure 
Matrix will prepare a Final Drainage Report (FDR) for the Phase 2 Roadway Engineering and Construction 
documents.  The report will include stormwater conveyance along with a preliminary design of 
stormwater detention and water quality facilities and permanent BMP’s, if required.  The report will be 
prepared in accordance with current City of Colorado Springs drainage criteria.  Matrix will coordinate 
approval through the City. 
 
Task 3: Monument Signage 
 

Monument Sign Schematic Design 
Matrix will generate schematic design and theming for primary and secondary monument 
signs for the development as well as general mapping of proposed sign locations to ensure a 
cohesive theming throughout the community.       

 
Monument Sign 75% Construction Development Drawings 

Using the schematic primary entry and secondary monument sign designs completed above, 
Matrix will prepare 75% Construction Development Drawings to be used by the General 
Contractor/ Sign Vendor in support of sign construction.  The design plans are intended to 
be used as a guiding document for construction and not a Means & Methods drawing set. 
The 75% construction development plans will illustrate general materials, dimensions; color 
schemes; text size and fonts; general lighting location and lighting fixture selection.   
However, the engineered construction details, construction techniques and specifications 
for the monument signs will be provided via shop drawings provided by the General 
Contractor/ Sign Vendor to the owner/ client for review during the construction submittal 
process.   The General Contractor/ Sign Vender is responsible for procuring all necessary 
stamped drawings and permits from the local building department.    

 
  



 
 
 
 

 

Page 6 

Task 4: Project Meetings and Coordination  
Matrix will participate in and/or attend meetings, as required, to complete the project.  Meetings and 
coordination include, but are not limited to, meetings with the Client, Developers, Developer’s 
consultants, jurisdictions, project team, the City, CSU, etc.  Meetings and project coordination will be 
billed on a time and materials basis. 
 
Task 5: Direct Expenses  
Expenses (mileage, copying, overnight mail, postage, etc.) will be billed as a pass-through cost plus 10%. 
 
  



 
 
 
 

 

Page 7 

PROFESSIONAL FEES 
The attached fee schedule details the professional fees for this project.  Tasks 1-3 will be billed monthly 
on a Lump Sum percent complete basis.  Project Meetings and Coordination will be billed monthly on a 
Time and Materials basis at Matrix Standard Hourly Rates.  Additional services not listed within the 
scope of services will be approved in advance by the Client and a change order will be issued prior to 
completing any work that is outside of the agreed upon scope. 
 

CONDITIONS, ASSUMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS 
The following conditions and assumptions are an integral part of this proposal: 
 

1. If conditions materially change during the project, Matrix reserves the right to renegotiate part 
of or this contract to reflect the changed conditions. 

2. Geotechnical investigations/reports/testing, electrical, lighting, survey, irrigation, subsurface 
utility engineering (S.U.E.), traffic control plans and architectural services are not included.  
Pavement design to be provided by geotechnical engineer. 

3. Over-excavation plans are not included. 
4. Existing utility investigation including, but not limited to, potholing and utility locates are not 

included. 
5. Final plats, legal descriptions and exhibits are not included. 
6. Survey data provided has been represented as reliable, current, and complete.  Matrix is not 

responsible for the accuracy of the design survey information provided, and Client shall hold 
Matrix harmless for any errors or omissions to said data to include design work completed by 
Matrix that is affected by erroneous, incomplete, or inaccurate survey information.  If additional 
information is required, Matrix will coordinate with the Client’s surveyor.  

7. Structural engineering services (if required) such as structural retaining walls, special drainage 
structures, etc. are not included unless specifically included. 

8. Submittal fees, permit fees, platting fees, review fees, financial assurances are the responsibility 
of the Client. 

9. Quantity take-offs and bid packages are not included. 
10. Construction administration is not included. 
11. Upon acceptance of this proposal, Client aggress to defend, indemnify, and hold Matrix 

harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including, but not 
limited to, attorneys’ fees, legal defense fees, and court costs, arising out of or related to 
geotechnical site issues including, but not limited to, settlement, expansive soils, subsurface 
drainage, foundation movement, etc.  

12. If requested, Matrix will provide site civil design in AutoCAD 2020, or latest version used by 
Matrix, to the Client/Contractor/Owner.  Files will be provided for reference only.  In the event 
there is any discrepancy between electronic files and hard copy final approved signed and 
sealed plans/documents, the hard copy signed plans/documents shall govern. 

13. Offsite extensions (outside of the roadway corridors) greater than 100’ for water, sanitary sewer 
and storm sewer are not included unless otherwise specified. 



 
 
 
 

 

Page 8 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL FEE SCHEDULE 
 
Task Item – Lump Sum Task Fee 
 
Task 1:  Phase 2 Engineering/Construction Documents – Roadways $ 338,500.00 
Task 2:  Final Drainage Report (Phase 2) $   20,000.00 
Task 3:  Monument Signage $   22,000.00 
 
 Total (Lump Sum) $ 380,500.00 
 
 
Time and Materials – Billed as Accrued 

• Meetings and Project Coordination – Billed at Standard Matrix Hourly Rates 
• Expenses – Billed at Cost plus 10% 










	BHMD 1-3 2022 04 12  Draft v5f
	AGENDA

	Page Divider
	2022 03 08 Minutes final
	Page Divider
	BHMD #1 033122 Financials
	bs
	bva
	inc
	exp

	BHMD #2 033122 Financials
	bs
	bva
	exp
	inc

	BHMD #3 033122 Financials (2)
	bs
	bva
	inc
	exp

	Page Divider
	BHMD 040522 Payables
	041222 Bond Requisition
	Page Divider
	20220407 Bradley Heights-Infrastructure Planning and Phase 1 CDs - Add Services (No 1)
	20220407 Bradley Heights-Phase 2 CDs



